
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
GETTING STARTED IN  

FAMILY HISTORY 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  

GETTING STARTED IN FAMILY HISTORY 
 
Family history research involves studying the genealogy (or ancestry) of a family. It 
can be a very rewarding hobby – and very addictive! Here are some basic steps 
and resources to help you get started in your research.  

Collect what information you already have 

Write down what you already know about your relatives – dates and location of 
births, marriages and deaths. Make sure you include middle names where they are 
known, as this helps distinguish between two people of the same name, and can 
often be a link between generations. Gather together what documents you already 
have. This could include birth, marriage and death certificates, burials, family 
bibles, diaries, wills and deeds to land.  
 
Any historical documents can come in handy – diaries, letters, scrapbooks and 
legal records. Talk to family members to fill in any gaps and find out what family 
documents and photographs they have. 

Find out what research has already been done 

Let all your relatives know you are researching family history. Chances are 
someone else in your family may have already started a family tree, and would be 
quite happy to share their information with you.  

Recording the information 

To record your family information you will either need to record the information on 
forms if you prefer writing information on paper, or record it in a computer program. 
Some of the most popular family tree programs are Family Tree Maker, Legacy, 
RootsMagic and Ancestral Quest. Some of these are available as a free download. 
If you are recording the information on forms, the New Zealand Society of 
Genealogists website (www.genealogy.org.nz) has family group sheets and 
pedigree charts that can be downloaded.  
 

http://www.genealogy.org.nz/


  

Start by recording information for your own family, then work back to your parents 
and grandparents. You will quickly see what information is missing or incomplete. 
Make sure you record full names of relatives, and record female relatives by their 
maiden surname if that is known. Be consistent in how you record the information – 
a lot of people put the surnames in capital letters. You will also want to record 
dates and locations of events for the people in your family tree. 

Recording your sources 

Whether you choose to record your research on paper or on computer, it is 
important to keep notes of the source of your information. This will help you and 
others know where the information came from.  
 
Sources fall into two types – primary and secondary. Primary sources are 
documents such as birth, death and marriage certificates, wills, census returns, 
electoral rolls, shipping registers and personal knowledge from a relative of who 
their parents and grandparents were. Often this information would be written in a 
family bible. Generally the information in primary sources will be accurate – 
although be wary of death certificates, as the names of parents will be what the 
person providing the information remembers at the time and is sometimes wrong.  
 
Secondary sources include everything else including data on 
www.familysearch.org and family trees research by other people (such as those on 
www.ancestry.com or www.genesreunited.com.) Eventually you should try and 
check data from secondary sources yourself, but that is often hard to do 
immediately, so keeping a note of where your source came from is quite important.  

Where to get more information 

There are numerous sources of genealogical information on the internet. If you 
don’t have internet at home, all our libraries have free computer access including 
internet. Rangiora and Kaiapoi Libraries also have free WiFi access for your laptop.  
 
Online searchable databases of particular relevance are: 

· NZ Births Deaths and Marriages historical records  
(www.bdmhistoricalrecords.dia.govt.nz). The historical data that can be 
accessed online is limited to: births that occurred at least 100 years ago, 
stillbirths that occurred at least 50 years ago, marriages that occurred at 
least 80 years ago, and deaths that occurred at least 50 years ago or the 
deceased’s date of birth was at least 80 years ago.  

· Archives New Zealand - Archway (http://archway.archives.govt.nz/) is the 
database of over 1.5 million records held in the four Archives offices. 

· Papers Past (http://paperspast.natlib.govt.nz) is a searchable database of 
19th and early 20th century New Zealand newspapers with more than two 
million digitised pages. 

· Commonwealth War Graves Commission debt of honour register 
(www.cwgc.org/debt_of_honour.asp) lists the men and women of the 
Commonwealth who died in the first and second world wars. 

http://www.familysearch.org/
http://www.ancestry.com/
http://www.genesreunited.com/
http://www.bdmhistoricalrecords.dia.govt.nz/
http://archway.archives.govt.nz/
http://paperspast.natlib.govt.nz/
http://www.cwgc.org/debt_of_honour.asp


  

· Auckland War Memorial Museum’s cenotaph database 
(http://muse.aucklandmuseum.com/databases/cenotaph/locations.aspx) has 
details of New Zealand service men and women from the 19th century until 
today. 

· Local Government Online’s Cemeteries Search 
(www.localgovt.co.nz/site/Recource_Library/activities_services/services/cem
eteries/Cemeteries_Search_Models.aspx) has a list of the 73 New Zealand 
councils that administer cemeteries, with links to those with searchable 
online databases. Local online cemetery search databases are available for 
Waimakariri District Council 
(www.waimakariri.govt.nz/services/cemeteries/cemetery-search.aspx) and 
Christchurch City Council 
(http://librarydata.christchurch.org.nz/Cemeteries/).  

· Ancestry (www.ancestry.com) is a very extensive family history website. 
The database can be searched for free, but you will need to subscribe if you 
want to view the records, or come into a library and use Ancestry Library 
Edition on our computers or your own wifi-enabled laptop. Ancestry also has 
some very good guides for people starting out in genealogy.  

· FamilySearch (www.familysearch.org) is the largest genealogy organisation 
in the world, with an extensive database of family records that can be 
accessed free. 

· FreeBMD (http://freebmd.rootsweb.com/) contains the civil registration index 
information for England and Wales from 1837 onwards. 

· Scotland's People (www.scotlandspeople.gov.uk) has Scottish births, 
deaths, marriages, census records, wills and testaments from 1513-now. 

· Irish Family History Foundation (www.rootsireland.ie) has an extensive 
database if you are researching your Irish ancestors. 

 
 
 
The Genealogy Resources page on our Library website 
(http://libraries.waimakariri.govt.nz) has a list of other useful websites to check out 
to help you in your family history research. The Library website also has a list of 
family histories of local people that we have in our collection.  

Want to know more? 

Recommended New Zealand Reading: 
Bromell, Anne – Tracing family history in New Zealand (929.1 BRO) 
Bromell, Anne – Tracing family history overseas from New Zealand (929.1 BRO) 
Henry, Ros – Find your family on the internet: a New Zealand guide (929.1 HEN) 
MacGibbon, John – Your family’s history: research, write and publish it (929.1 
MCG) 
 
Local Genealogy Society: 
You might consider joining the Waimakariri branch of the New Zealand Society of 
Genealogists to learn from other genealogists They meet at 7.30 pm on the third 
Thursday of each month at the Rangiora Brass Band Rooms, Northbrook Road, 
Rangiora, and new members are always welcome. Their website is 
http://sites.google.com/site/waimakaririgenealogy/.  

http://muse.aucklandmuseum.com/databases/cenotaph/locations.aspx
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http://librarydata.christchurch.org.nz/Cemeteries/
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http://freebmd.rootsweb.com/
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